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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to this morning's meeting of the City

          4  Council's Committee on Transportation. My name is

          5  John Liu and I chair this Committee.

          6                 I want to welcome all of you this

          7  morning to this public hearing that we're having on

          8  the bill that would recognize the Asian Lunar New

          9  Years as a holiday of the City of New York and add

         10  it to the other holidays wherein the alternate side

         11  of street parking regulations are suspended.

         12                 Let me first introduce the colleagues

         13  that have joined us today. We have from my right

         14  Councilman Andrew Lanza from Staten Island;

         15  Councilman Martin Golden from Brooklyn; and Council

         16  Member Simcha Felder also from Brooklyn; and

         17  Councilman Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.

         18                 There are other members of the

         19  Council who will be joining us, and unfortunately

         20  leaving also, because there are a lot of other

         21  meetings that are happening at the same time as this

         22  hearing. We are also now joined by Councilman Alan

         23  Gerson, who I think many of us know from Manhattan.

         24                 I've convened today's meeting for the

         25  purpose of hearing public testimony on City Council
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          2  Introduction No. 6, a bill that will amend the

          3  Administrative Code of New York City to officially

          4  recognize Asian Lunar New Year. Specifically this

          5  bill will include the Lunar New Year on the list of

          6  City holidays where people are exempt from the

          7  Alternate Side of Street parking rules, which is an

          8  important consideration for many New Yorkers who

          9  take the time to celebrate this popular holiday.

         10                 Symbolically, the inclusion of Asian

         11  Lunar New Years provides a mechanism for the City of

         12  New York to formally acknowledge the growing

         13  importance of the Asian-American community to both

         14  the history and the future of our great metropolis.

         15  This is an important step, one that will hopefully

         16  lead to more meaningful changes in the way our City

         17  government provides access to municipal programs and

         18  services.

         19                 Asian-Americans have contributed a

         20  great deal to the vitality of this City, as well as

         21  this country, and it's time that we get some

         22  recognition for that.

         23                 Not only will the institution of this

         24  holiday in this City be important for the

         25  Asian-Americans who celebrate this most important
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          2  holiday in the Asian community, but it will also

          3  allow other New Yorkers to realize that there is a

          4  holiday going on, and to understand the significance

          5  of the contributions of Asian-Americans.

          6                 I would first like to invite Rocco

          7  Sabatella, Chief of Cleaning Operations for the New

          8  York City Department of Sanitation to come forward

          9  and testify on behalf of the Department of

         10  Sanitation, and the Administration.

         11                 Next we will hear from all members of

         12  the public who would like to provide some testimony

         13  on this particular very important issue. If you

         14  would like to testify, please do so. You will have

         15  up to three minutes to provide your comments, and if

         16  you would like to testify, I would ask you to please

         17  fill out one of these slips of paper and return it

         18  to the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         19                 If you need help completing this

         20  form, please raise your hand and a member of the

         21  staff will help you fill it out in English.

         22                 The testimony that we'll accept today

         23  can be in any language, English or Chinese or Korean

         24  or otherwise, and we will have interpreters for all

         25  the languages that will be spoken today. The
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          2  interpreted language will be entered formally into

          3  the City Council records.

          4                 Again, please keep your testimony to

          5  three minutes. When you have half a minute left I

          6  will let you know. And if you would like to provide

          7  testimony but prefer not to speak, then you can

          8  certainly enter your testimony in by written record.

          9                 So, let's commence this hearing, and

         10  I hope we will be able to flesh out all the

         11  important issues related to this bill.

         12                 Mr. Sabatella.

         13                 MR. SABATELLA: Good morning, Chairman

         14  Liu, and members of the Committee on Transportation.

         15                 I am Rocco Sabatella, Chief of

         16  Cleaning Operations for the New York City Department

         17  of Transportation. I am here to testify on Intro. 6

         18  under consideration today.

         19                 This bill would add the Asian Lunar

         20  New Year to the Department's schedule of street

         21  cleaning suspension. In my testimony, I will discuss

         22  the technical and operational aspects of the

         23  Department's street cleaning responsibility that

         24  would be impacted by the suspension of alternate

         25  side parking.
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          2                 Litter control and street cleanliness

          3  in New York City are important quality of life

          4  concerns for the Department of Sanitation. The

          5  Department is responsible for ensuring the

          6  cleanliness of over 6,000 miles of City streets. I

          7  am sure you will agree that keeping our streets

          8  clean is not an easy task, given the number of

          9  motorists and pedestrians who travel and

         10  unfortunately litter them daily.

         11                 Mechanical brooms are the

         12  Department's most cost effective method of street

         13  cleaning. Alternate side parking regulations provide

         14  curbside accessibility so that sanitation workers

         15  can operate mechanical brooms to clean over 6,000

         16  miles of the City streets covered under the

         17  alternate side parkings program.

         18                 While a mechanical broom can sweep an

         19  average of 12 curb miles per shift, a sanitation

         20  worker using a hand broom manually will sweep an

         21  average of only one curb mile.

         22                 During the early to mid-1990s, when

         23  the Department's street cleaning budget was reduced,

         24  the Department consistently maintained acceptable

         25  levels of cleanliness. In recent years, however, the
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          2  Department has worked diligently to ensure that

          3  levels of street cleanliness in neighborhoods

          4  Citywide are improved and maintained.

          5                 As a result, the City has achieved

          6  historic levels of street cleanliness. Of course,

          7  cleaner streets presents a positive image for New

          8  York City, and like safer streets has made a City an

          9  attractive place for businesses and tourism, which

         10  greatly benefits the City's economy.

         11                 In FY 1995, the Department

         12  implemented its segmented mechanical broom street

         13  sweeping program, reducing the amount of time

         14  parking and restricting for street cleaning

         15  purposes.

         16                 The program initially for the benefit

         17  of both residential and commercial establishments

         18  reduces the no parking time from three hours to 90

         19  minutes on weekdays. On Saturdays the Department

         20  provides mechanical broom sweeping only along the

         21  metered streets and commercial areas.

         22                 There are currently 44 community

         23  board districts in the Department segmented sweeping

         24  program, and by 2003 the program will incorporate 54

         25  community board districts.
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          2                 The three districts in Staten Island

          3  and one in Queens 10 and Queens 11 will not have

          4  segmented sweeping since they do not have street

          5  cleaning regulations.

          6                 In many neighborhoods throughout the

          7  City, street cleanliness is only scheduled one time

          8  per week. In these one-time areas, the Department

          9  sweeps one side of the street on one day and the

         10  other side of the street on another.

         11                 It is these areas that are most

         12  likely to be impacted by the suspension, the

         13  suspended street cleaning when it occurs.

         14                 When the streets are not swept for a

         15  period of time, extensive litter will accumulate

         16  along street curbside. This is especially noticeable

         17  in commercial areas on Sunday evenings, when street

         18  cleanliness has not occurred for two days.

         19                 In the current calendar year, the

         20  City is scheduled to suspend alternate side parking

         21  rules for street cleaning purposes on 32 legal and

         22  religious holidays, excluding those days that fall

         23  on a Sunday when the Department does not provide

         24  street cleaning services.

         25                 The Department has previously
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          2  testified on similar legislation in the past. The

          3  Department's position was to oppose this bill. That

          4  position remains unchanged.

          5                 The effort of this bill would be the

          6  addition of one day during the year in which the

          7  Department would be prohibited from providing

          8  mechanical broom street sweeping -- street cleaning

          9  throughout neighborhoods citywide.

         10                 This could greatly affect community

         11  cleanliness. For example, in September of this year,

         12  street cleaning rules will be suspended for five

         13  days. This number does not include Sundays when the

         14  Department does not provide street cleaning

         15  services.

         16                 In neighborhoods where street

         17  cleaning is only scheduled on time of one time per

         18  week, and the designated day for street cleaning

         19  services is a Saturday, these neighborhoods will not

         20  receive street cleaning services for three out of

         21  the four Saturdays in the month of September.

         22                 It is these areas that are most

         23  likely to feel and see the impact of suspended

         24  street cleaning when it occurs.

         25                 For the above reasons, the Department
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          2  of Sanitation respectfully opposes Intro. No. 6.

          3                 I would now be happy to answer any of

          4  your questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Sabatella. Before we go to questions, and there will

          7  be a couple of questions from my colleagues here in

          8  the Committee, we are joined also by Councilman

          9  Joseph Addabbo on my right from Queens, and to my

         10  left we have been joined by Councilwoman Diana Reyna

         11  from Brooklyn, and the former Senator and now

         12  Council Member Larry Seabrook from the Bronx.

         13                 A question from Councilman Golden.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman.

         16                 I know that this City is a little

         17  upset about these holidays. How many did you say

         18  there were?

         19                 MR. SABATELLA: Thirty-two.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thirty-two.

         21  Thirty-two holidays. And it was a precedent that has

         22  been set from many administrations, obviously this

         23  Administration is obviously, and the last

         24  Administration was concerned about the holidays, and

         25  obviously probably should have some type of
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          2  regulation or some type of set-up that would allow

          3  us to analyze what should be and what shouldn't be a

          4  date. But I think you'd agree that the Asian

          5  community is one of the fastest growing, and

          6  probably one of the largest communities in the City

          7  of New York today. I think you'd have to recognize

          8  that.

          9                 MR. SABATELLA: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And I think

         11  we'd have to recognize that the Asian community is

         12  not just in this City, but around the world

         13  represents about 2 billion people out of

         14  approximately 6 billion people that live in this

         15  great world.

         16                 That gives us approximately a third

         17  of the people that live in this great world are of

         18  Asian descent, and if we have close to a million

         19  living here in New York City, which I would venture

         20  to say next to California is probably the largest

         21  Asian community outside of the Asian Pacific rim in

         22  the world, I think you'd have to also agree with

         23  that.

         24                 MR. SABATELLA: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: So I think
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          2  it's important that we look seriously at making and

          3  having the City take a fresh look at naming Lunar

          4  New Year on behalf of the Asian culture that lived

          5  here in this great City, and hopefully it would

          6  bring that back to the Administration and ask them

          7  to reconsider their opposition to this.

          8                 I think this bill, as you can see in

          9  this room today, is resounding into the communities,

         10  and they want it, and I think it's important that we

         11  as legislators do what the people request, and I

         12  think this is long overdue.

         13                 As you know, the alternate side of

         14  the street, that was reduced from three hours to an

         15  hour and a half, was my doing back in 1993, in 1992,

         16  and that took me some ten years to get the City of

         17  New York to pay attention and to say and give me a

         18  realistic answer as to why we should have alternate

         19  side of the street at three hours, and why we can't

         20  have it at one and a half hours. We actually wanted

         21  one hour and they came back with one and a half

         22  hours and it turned out to be a boon for the City

         23  and saving man hours and machine hours.

         24                 We, too, here in City Council are

         25  looking for great ideas, new ideas, to help clean
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          2  the streets, and you know, Sunday is not a bad day

          3  to start looking at doing some street cleaning.

          4                 I don't think there's any commercial

          5  strip in the City of New York today, or I shouldn't

          6  say any, there's a lot of streets in the City of New

          7  York, commercial strips today that could use street

          8  cleaning on Sunday, and maybe that's something that

          9  the Department of Sanitation and the City of New

         10  York should look at, is to start thinking out of the

         11  box in how we can clean these streets a little bit

         12  better.

         13                 But to take a law that's been

         14  precedented by the previous Administration, and to

         15  try to impose that on a population in a community,

         16  it's not the Asian community, it's our community,

         17  they're all part of our community. It's important

         18  that we get this bill passed.

         19                 So, I would ask you, Chief, if you

         20  could bring that back to the Administration and to

         21  your supervisors, and let them know our concerns,

         22  that we think out of the box for future cleaning,

         23  that we try to give the appropriateness and the

         24  respect to a street law, to a street holiday for the

         25  Asian Lunar New Year, and I thank you for your
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          2  testimony today. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          4                 Questions from Councilman Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Commissioner,

          6  or Chief, do you know when the Asian or Lunar New

          7  Year is celebrated?

          8                 MR. SABATELLA: No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Would it

         10  surprise you to learn that it's celebrated, and it's

         11  even in the bill, which I would recommend you read,

         12  that it's celebrated several weeks after the winter

         13  solstace, which is December 21st, so it's probably

         14  celebrated about February.

         15                 Does that refresh your recollection

         16  as when the Chinese or Asian Lunar New Year is

         17  celebrated?

         18                 MR. SABATELLA: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So why in

         20  your testimony, sir, do you mention September?

         21  Because it has nothing to do with this proposal,

         22  does it?

         23                 MR. SABATELLA: I just mentioned

         24  September as one of the months out of the year that

         25  there are five of the holidays. It had nothing to do
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          2  with the specific date of the holiday itself.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But it seemed

          4  to me that it's irrelevant to mention September,

          5  except to point out that one of the holidays that we

          6  do celebrate or we do recognize because of -- is the

          7  Jewish New Year, which is Rosh Hashana, it sort of

          8  commends to -- are you complaining about the

          9  celebration of the Jewish New Year by having

         10  suspension of alternate side parking?

         11                 MR. SABATELLA: I'm not complaining

         12  about any holiday, it's just that the more holidays

         13  that are approved creates a problem for the

         14  Department of Sanitation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But I am

         16  wondering why you mentioned September?

         17                 MR. SABATELLA: Because September was

         18  one of our most critical months for holidays.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, but the

         20  Lunar New Year is not in September.

         21                 MR. SABATELLA: I didn't associate the

         22  Lunar New Year with September.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But you

         24  mentioned September in your testimony.

         25                 MR. SABATELLA: I mentioned September
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          2  as one of the months that had five holidays.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I would

          4  suggest you strike the references to September from

          5  your testimony, because, frankly, I take some

          6  umbrage at it, because those holidays in September

          7  are Jewish holidays and you seem to be complaining

          8  about that.

          9                 What I would say to you is that the

         10  fact that we do close the street cleaning or cease

         11  the street cleaning in the Jewish New Year, is a

         12  very good reason why we should also do it on the

         13  Lunar New Year, which is a similar type celebration.

         14                 MR. SABATELLA: Yes, and the

         15  Department disagrees with it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I would

         17  suggest, sir, that you may disagree with it, but

         18  don't -- if you're raising September, are you then

         19  suggesting, sir, that in September we should

         20  eliminate the current provision for suspension of

         21  street cleaning in September? Is that your

         22  suggestion?

         23                 MR. SABATELLA: I'm suggesting that we

         24  are not in favor of any more holidays or street

         25  cleaning suspension.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But September

          3  has nothing to do with February.

          4                 MR. SABATELLA: No, it doesn't.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, I think

          6  you should take out the references to September,

          7  unless you're recommending that we go back and

          8  cancel the suspension of alternate parking in

          9  September.

         10                 MR. SABATELLA: Well, that could be a

         11  possibility.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I would

         13  suggest it's not a good idea.

         14                 MR. SABATELLA: Well, that's fine.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         16  Councilman Koppell.

         17                 A question from Councilman Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good morning.

         19  How are you?

         20                 Good morning.

         21                 Just to follow-up, how many days are

         22  suspended in the month of December, or November

         23  rather? I don't want to drive you nuts.

         24                 How about November?

         25                 MR. SABATELLA: There are four dates

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  in November.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay. So then

          4  it's clear that there are other months throughout

          5  the year that there are many, many days that the

          6  alternate side is suspended. So the issue clearly is

          7  that you're opposed to the suspension of any days,

          8  and I agree with my colleagues, I think that in your

          9  comments you should just make reference to the fact

         10  that there are many months throughout the year that

         11  the suspension, a number of days throughout the

         12  month.

         13                 Now, the issue of, the 32 days that

         14  you say legal and religious holidays, I want to

         15  address the Jewish holidays. Would you say that it's

         16  true that depending on the year it alternates as to

         17  how many days you lose depending on the year with

         18  the Jewish holidays, whether you lose X number of

         19  days or other number of days; is that true or not?

         20                 MR. SABATELLA: It's possible if some

         21  of the holidays fall on a Sunday.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. And not

         23  only do I know it's possible, I know it's so. So,

         24  that means that you don't always have 32. Is 32 the

         25  most that you would have?
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          2                 MR. SABATELLA: Well, again, like the

          3  Councilman said, they vary every year, the calendar

          4  comes out from the Department of Transportation, and

          5  they indicate what days the holidays are. The ones

          6  that are on a Sunday change also.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right, I

          8  understand. But I'm asking you whether the number

          9  you gave us, 32, is the most that you have

         10  suspended, the most that you would have suspended in

         11  a year, which means that some years you have less,

         12  right?

         13                 MR. SABATELLA: At the present time,

         14  yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So that means

         16  that there are years that you have less than 32 days

         17  suspended?

         18                 MR. SABATELLA: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And that we

         20  should know that. So that's important.

         21                 Now, I feel very strongly, I want to

         22  echo the comments that were made by my colleagues,

         23  Councilman Golden and Councilman Koppell, about

         24  having the Asian Lunar New Year to declare that a

         25  holiday with alternate side is suspended. I think
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          2  that the issue of alternate side cleaning, you said

          3  in your comments it was started, when did they start

          4  this program? When did they start this program of

          5  suspending -- I'm sorry, of alternate side parking

          6  for mechanical broom sweeping?

          7                 MR. SABATELLA: You're saying what

          8  year was it?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, how long?

         10                 MR. SABATELLA: I think it goes back

         11  to at least over 40 years.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: How many?

         13                 MR. SABATELLA: At least over 40

         14  years.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: What happened

         16  with the streets before that?

         17                 MR. SABATELLA: I couldn't tell you. I

         18  didn't work for the Department at that time.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         20                 Well, I was four years old, and the

         21  streets were pretty good, and I'm not trying to give

         22  you a hard time, but this City was busy and hustling

         23  and bustling and there was some way in which the

         24  streets were kept clean without it, so I would

         25  emphasize that clearly in a situation like this, we

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  must make an exception to allow people throughout

          3  the City to celebrate their holidays, and in terms

          4  of the cleaning issue, in terms of the cleaning

          5  issue, there are other ways to get this City clean,

          6  and they had been cleaned before the alternate side

          7  came into effect, so I think that there are ways to

          8  get it done. Not my job, I don't try to tell you how

          9  to do your job, but I am certain that there are ways

         10  that the streets can be maintained and cleaned

         11  without showing a disrespect to this community, and

         12  I think it's very important that this day be

         13  suspended.

         14                 In addition, I wanted to mention that

         15  there are other days, as you know, that there are

         16  other days throughout the year that you mentioned

         17  that it's suspended, and if the Administration

         18  wants, I personally don't have any problem in the

         19  Administration saying that they want to revisit the

         20  whole issue and decide on all the holidays, every

         21  holiday, Jewish, non-Jewish, Muslim, Catholic,

         22  everything, and decide how it should be instituted.

         23  But particularly the Asian Lunar New Year to decide

         24  that this one, we're going to put a stop at it at

         25  this point, and I know that that's not your doing, I
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          2  think would be wrong.

          3                 So, until the Administration decides

          4  to come up with new regulations and review the

          5  entire way it does alternate side suspension, then I

          6  will tell you to please take the message back, that

          7  the Asian Lunar New Year should be suspended, just

          8  like all the other holidays and that it be given the

          9  respect due to it.

         10                 Thank you for coming today.

         11                 MR. SABATELLA: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         13  Councilman Felder. We have a question from

         14  Councilman Gerson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you,

         16  Chairperson Liu, I'll be very, very brief, as I am

         17  indeed a guest here at this hearing, since I am not

         18  a member of this Committee, though I am a co-sponsor

         19  of the bill Intro. 6 under consideration, and a very

         20  strong proponent of it, but I first want to thank

         21  you, Council Member Chair John Liu, for your

         22  extraordinary leadership on this issue, but on all

         23  the issues of importance to our entire community,

         24  thank you for allowing to join with you and to be

         25  here today.
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          2                 I just very briefly, Chief, I won't

          3  reiterate what has been stated, I'm sure you kind of

          4  got the point. I think I understand what you were

          5  driving at, but I think it was unfortunate to in

          6  discussion of the sacred days on one tradition in

          7  our City, you single out a month which includes

          8  sacred days of another tradition, and that kind of

          9  goes contrary to part of what the suspension of

         10  alternate side has become in this great City of

         11  ours, which indeed I believe, and I think we all

         12  recognize as New Yorkers, is a unique, perhaps New

         13  York way of recognizing, respecting and cherishing

         14  the different traditions of this great mosaic of

         15  which our City comprises, and alternate side of the

         16  street suspension is kind of a way for all New

         17  Yorkers to celebrate each others' tradition, and

         18  also to honor each other. And I'm sure, you know,

         19  the Department recognizes that. And I would add, I

         20  mean, am I correct that there is no other suspension

         21  currently in effect that is a suspension due to a

         22  special date on the Asian Lunar New Year; is that

         23  correct?

         24                 MR. SABATELLA: That's correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So this would
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          2  be the one and only?

          3                 MR. SABATELLA: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And this will,

          5  as my Council Member reminds me, will take place in

          6  January or February, and in fact not in September?

          7                 MR. SABATELLA: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm sure you

          9  wouldn't disagree that the Department is creative

         10  and smart enough, especially with your leadership to

         11  kind of work around any inconvenience which the

         12  addition of this one single day to our calendar

         13  might add, and I would, picking up on Council Member

         14  Felder, on those years when this does not fall out

         15  on a weekend date when it might not otherwise be

         16  suspended. I mean, don't you think you could figure

         17  out a way in this one case to be creative enough to

         18  offset any disadvantage?

         19                 You don't have to answer that if you

         20  don't want to, but maybe you could just add that to

         21  the list of thoughts for consideration.

         22                 At any rate, and thank you for your

         23  leadership in the Department and I want to just say

         24  I strongly endorse the bill. I feel privileged to be

         25  able to co-sponsor it, I think this is a step
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          2  forward in our unique New York way of recognizing

          3  the magnificent diversity that comprises our City

          4  and certainly as the Chair and others have pointed

          5  out, the Asian American community deserves this

          6  recognition, both on the practical level, because it

          7  will avoid terrible inconveniences to those who

          8  celebrate the holiday, and on the broader level it

          9  will provide a level of respect and recognition due.

         10                 And I'll conclude by saying, not only

         11  does the Asian-American community deserve this

         12  holiday, but all New Yorkers deserve this holiday,

         13  because we all benefit when we recognize each

         14  other's traditions.

         15                 So, I thank you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         17  Councilman Gerson.

         18                 Councilman Nelson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 I ought to salute Chairman Liu with

         22  bringing this to the fore. It's something that's

         23  overdue, and we will do this.

         24                 Sorry, Chief, that you're in the hot

         25  seat here. I know you're representing the
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          2  Administration and it can't be easy no matter what

          3  your personal feeling is about this or not.

          4                 Maybe just because I have a large

          5  amount of members of the Chinese community in my

          6  district in Homecrest, or maybe because I won my

          7  seat to this Council February 16th, '99, which just

          8  happened to coincide with the Chinese New Year that

          9  day, that I'm very superstitious and I feel very

         10  strongly, but more so, it's a just thing to do

         11  overall. I believe we're going to do it, and I

         12  believe if it's vetoed and I believe we're going to

         13  get the 34 to override, we'll muster the 34, because

         14  it's just the right thing to do, and that's the

         15  number one issue here.

         16                 But I appreciate the position you're

         17  in, and I again thank the chair for this and I thank

         18  all of the people who came out today.

         19                 You don't get many people coming to

         20  City Hall that easily, and obviously there's a

         21  strong concern for this. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         23  Councilman Nelson. And one final question from

         24  Councilwoman Sears.

         25                 Helen Sears has joined us from
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          2  Queens, as has Councilwoman Maria Baez from the

          3  Bronx.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman. Thank you for being here. I know we are

          6  all very sensitive about this particular issue, and

          7  the responsibilities that you have in seeing that

          8  our communities are maintained in the way they

          9  should with the sanitation regulations. However, I

         10  think the issue is really not that, although I

         11  really respect that, I think the issue here is what

         12  are communities made up of, how are they made up,

         13  how do we think, and the diversity of these

         14  communities, and within that diversity are all kinds

         15  of celebrations, and if we were to pick and choose

         16  what we did and how we did that, it would really

         17  weaken the diversity that is the strength of New

         18  York City.

         19                 So, it seems that to observe these

         20  holidays and to remove that alternate side of the

         21  street parking for that day, is something that

         22  requires a little creativity, and New York has

         23  survived on being creative, particularly at this

         24  time when we are dealing with some very, very

         25  difficult times.
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          2                 I support this bill and will vote for

          3  it, because it is what we are about.

          4                 I have a district that's the most

          5  diverse in this City of New York, and we have

          6  celebrations, and the alternate side of the street

          7  parking is suspended. I tell you, I don't think

          8  there's a member in this community or in this

          9  district that really objects to that, and somehow,

         10  because you do such a great job, the next time that

         11  truck comes around, it's all done and everyone is

         12  quite happy. It is not debris that lingers from

         13  months and months because you do do your job, and I

         14  think as a result, we could support this bill, and I

         15  think we could support the effort you're doing, and

         16  I think together you will find that communities are

         17  cooperative. In fact, on those days we may even have

         18  less debris, because we are so cooperative, and I

         19  think you would find the jobs that your Department

         20  has to do and your men will not be more difficult

         21  because of the suspension. I suspect if many

         22  communities are an example, they're made a little

         23  bit easier.

         24                 So, I would urge you to consider

         25  that.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

          4  Councilwoman Sears.

          5                 We have a statement from Councilman

          6  Golden.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I just have

          8  one quick sentence, and I appreciate you giving me

          9  the opportunity.

         10                 Chief Rocco Sabatella has been around

         11  a long time, he's been a good man, he's done a lot

         12  of good work with the Department of Sanitation, and

         13  we all know that he's not discriminating against any

         14  one holiday or group of holidays, his only

         15  discrimination is dirty streets, and we appreciate

         16  that concern, and I agree with my colleague, Simcha

         17  Felder, there are many months out there that have

         18  many holidays, and maybe that was a bad choice using

         19  September, but we know that September is the next

         20  big month that comes up with a lot of big holidays,

         21  and I guess that's the reason for his choice.

         22                 But we understand your concern for

         23  dirty streets, and we understand your commitment to

         24  the Department of Sanitation and to the City of New

         25  York, but you can see here by the testimony today
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          2  that many of my colleagues are concerned that we be

          3  able to do the right thing for the Asian Lunar New

          4  Year.

          5                 We thank you for coming here today,

          6  and thank you for your concern.

          7                 MR. SABATELLA: Thank you, Councilman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Chief

          9  Sabatella, for your time this morning.

         10                 We have been joined by Councilwoman

         11  Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan. Thank you for joining

         12  us.

         13                 Let me call up our first panel to

         14  testify this morning, which will be comprised of

         15  three individuals, Mr. Ting Din Ng, from the Chinese

         16  Consolidated Benevolent Association. Tom Yu, also

         17  from the Chinese Consolidated Benevolent

         18  Association; and Mr. John Park, from the Korean

         19  Community Empowerment Council. Please join us on the

         20  witness table.

         21                 While they are coming up, let me give

         22  notice to the next panel who will testify after this

         23  panel, Mr. Fu-Ching Lo, from New York Best Chinese

         24  School; Bor Chu from the Taiwanese Veteran's

         25  Association, and Barry Grodenchik, a community
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          2  activist.

          3                 Mr. Ng, welcome.

          4                 MR. YU: Thank you, sir. I am the

          5  secretary of CCBA, the whole word would be Chinese

          6  Consolidated Benevolent Association. At my side is

          7  the President of the CCBA, Mr. Ting Din Ng. Mr. Ting

          8  Din Ng is going to testify in Chinese. He doesn't

          9  need interpreter. After he finish I will testify in

         10  English. Thank you.

         11                 MR. NG: (Through the interpreter, Mr.

         12  Yu.) The CCBA have been serving and representing the

         13  Chinese-American community for more than 100 years

         14  in New York City. The services we offer include day

         15  care, Chinese school, language classes, immigration

         16  service.

         17                 The CCBA also organize and sponsor

         18  many culture and arts to promote our community and

         19  our heritage. We are an umbrella organization of

         20  more than 60 different culture, civic and business

         21  organizations.

         22                 I am here to voice our support for

         23  the recognition of the Asian Lunar New Year as an

         24  official holiday in New York City.

         25                 The passage of this bill not only
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          2  recognize the contribution of Asian-American and the

          3  religious significance of this wonderful holiday,

          4  the passage of this bill recognize all the

          5  hard-working communities, and the diversity that

          6  make New York City a great City and puts substance

          7  behind calling New York City the capital of the

          8  world.

          9                 We would like to thank all the

         10  Council members for sponsoring this bill, and we'd

         11  like to thank the entire City Council for their

         12  support.

         13                 We especially like to thank Council

         14  Member Mr. Liu, Council Member Mr. Golden, and

         15  Council Member Mr. Gerson, for all their efforts and

         16  continue support throughout our community.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         19  We will now hear from John Park from the

         20  Korean-American Community Empowerment Council.

         21                 And maybe we can get the lights back

         22  on, too.

         23                 MR. PARK: Thank you, Chairman John

         24  Liu, City Councilman. Thank you, all the City

         25  Council, thank you very much for your efforts. You
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          2  are here, I think we're making history. Today is the

          3  history of maybe tomorrow or next year, next Lunar

          4  years. Thank you very much.

          5                 Actually, in China, Chinese New

          6  Years, what we call Korean New Years, so we say

          7  Lunar New Years, Asian, all celebrate Lunar New

          8  Years. When I was young, we don't go to school.

          9  School, no school days. We celebrate our

         10  grandfathers, our fathers, our uncles, so this is

         11  real, our celebration days, holidays. People we know

         12  Christmas, we know as Lunar year.

         13                 In Chinese, 150 years history of

         14  immigration. In Koreans, next year, after this year,

         15  though, 100 years in immigration celebrate, we're

         16  preparing celebrate now.

         17                 First come from Korea 1903, to the

         18  Hawaii, to the farmers, so this is the United

         19  States, this is proof of everybody, it's United

         20  States, so we strongly, so many people try to make

         21  this holiday, since I come to the United States, so

         22  we are most appreciate, especially Councilmen here,

         23  and who support this, make law. And also, we most

         24  appreciate John Liu, because him, we are here now.

         25  Because you, we are here now.
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          2                 So, today when I come here in a

          3  subway, what I have to tell? Only I can tell you we

          4  are making not only Asian, for everybody, today is

          5  the holiday for Asian, you are making this moment

          6  for the Asian, for the United States, this is a

          7  really great City.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Are there

         10  any questions from the Committee members?

         11                 Thank you very much for your

         12  testimony this morning.

         13                 Let me call up the next panel. Mr.

         14  Fu-Ching Lo; Mr. Bor Chu; and Mr. Barry Grodenchik.

         15                 And while they're coming up, let me

         16  give notice to the panel which will follow this

         17  panel.

         18                 Mr. Chuck Lou, from Confucius Borad

         19  of Directors; David Goodman from Confucius Plaza

         20  Management; and Paul Lee, a member of the CCBA and

         21  also Lower Manhattan Advisory Committee.

         22                 Mr. Lo, welcome.

         23                 MR. LO: (Through the interpreter) Mr.

         24  Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, good morning. I'm

         25  the Founder and the Principal of the Best Chinese
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          2  School. The school was established in 1975, it's

          3  been 27 years.

          4                 This year is 2002 and the 4,700th

          5  year in the Lunar calendar. I am a New Yorker, and I

          6  emigrated to New York in 1970. I love New York and I

          7  love America. I was born in China, I also love

          8  China. I enjoy the Chinese history and the culture,

          9  as well as my students and their families and our

         10  relatives.

         11                 Also, my relatives in United States

         12  and China, we all love America and we're residents

         13  of New York, therefore we love to make contributions

         14  to New York City.

         15                 I truly appreciate the liberty,

         16  freedom of United States giving to people. This

         17  country accepts people from all over the world, and

         18  they also accept all the different cultures. Each

         19  culture has its character, and specialty. The

         20  Chinese especially look up to the celebration of

         21  Lunar New Year, as much as the Americans looking up

         22  to celebrating the Thanksgiving dates. If New York

         23  City would just look up to the one date of parking

         24  meters receipts instead of setting the Chinese Lunar

         25  New Year as a holiday officially, this is
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          2  unnecessary because it's more important to respect

          3  the good quality and traditions and culture of each

          4  ethnic, more than the parking meters receiving.

          5                 If our City government can truly

          6  operate a government reasonably to save in spending

          7  and to open up resources for receiving, the

          8  government would definitely have more income to

          9  count.

         10                 We should not just look up to this

         11  one day parking meter receiving, and we should,

         12  instead, to enjoy the applause from people.

         13                 Therefore, I sincerely ask our City

         14  government to kindly set the Chinese Lunar New Year

         15  a public holiday, and they see Lunar New Year of the

         16  Asian people, make it an official holiday and I

         17  believe all the New Yorkers will raise their both

         18  hands applause to say long live New York.

         19                 Thank you very much. From the

         20  principal of New York Best Chinese School, Fu-Ching

         21  Lo, June 6th, 2002.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         23                 MS. YUNG: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         25  We will now hear from Mr. Bor Chu.
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          2                 MR. CHU: Mr. Chair, members of

          3  Council, I'm from the members of Taiwanese Veteran

          4  Association, I am also a New York taxi yellow cab

          5  driver more than 20 years.

          6                 As a Chinese-American, I feel the

          7  tradition of celebrate Chinese New Year is

          8  important, because we can stay home and celebrate

          9  with our family so we don't have to go to work and

         10  have a family reunion.

         11                 It will also promote our community

         12  and the City so that will help the City economy,

         13  because people will spend more. Also promote racial

         14  harmony and understanding.

         15                 Alternate side parking during Chinese

         16  New Year should be cancelled so that those of us who

         17  travel to other places during the Chinese New Year,

         18  holiday, don't have to worry about rushing home to

         19  move our vehicles.

         20                 Chinese New Year is not only

         21  celebrated by Chinese people. It also is celebrated

         22  by Korean people and other Asians as well, so that

         23  they are national holidays for other group such as

         24  Jewish, Irish, Puerto Rico, so there should be one

         25  Asian as well. I hope we can also have parade on
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          2  Fifth Avenue like other. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          4  Mr. Chu.

          5                 Barry Grodenchik.

          6                 MR. GRODENCHIK: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman. And thank you to the members of this

          8  Committee, especially my good friends from Queens,

          9  Helen Sears and Joe Addabbo. It is my pleasure to

         10  add my voice to all those seeking to establish the

         11  Lunar New Year as a New York City holiday. For many,

         12  many years parking regulations have been suspended

         13  in New York City so that the members of the various

         14  religious and ethnic groups that make up the City

         15  might more fully enjoy their religious and

         16  traditional celebrations.

         17                 In many communities, holidays would

         18  be difficult to celebrate were it not for the

         19  suspension of alternate side of the street parking

         20  regulations. It is in this spirit that I come before

         21  you this morning.

         22                 As our City continues to grow

         23  increasingly more diverse, we need to remain

         24  vigilant so that our laws and regulations reflect

         25  this diversity which is indeed our greatest

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  strength.

          3                 By adding the Lunar New Year to the

          4  list of holidays for which we suspend parking

          5  regulations, we shall not only facilitate its

          6  celebration, but also draw our great City closer

          7  together by ensuring that the greatest possible

          8  number of residents feel welcome and are afforded

          9  the same courtesy others now enjoy.

         10                 Therefore, I respectfully request

         11  that this Committee report favorably on this bill to

         12  the entire City Council, and I again thank you for

         13  the opportunity to testify before the Transportation

         14  Committee this morning. Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Gentlemen, thank you

         16  very much for your testimony and your time this

         17  morning.

         18                 MR. GRODENCHIK: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me also thank

         20  Ellen Yung for providing the translation for Mr. Lo.

         21                 I need to make a small change in our

         22  panels. Before the next panel comes up, I need to

         23  insert another panel. We are joined by former

         24  Councilwoman Kathryn Freed. I'd like to ask

         25  Councilwoman Freed to join us in the panel. And
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          2  along with her, to ask Po-Ling Ng, from the Chinese

          3  American Planning Council, and Mei-Hua Ru from

          4  Flushing to come testify along with Kathryn Freed.

          5                 We are also at this point joined by

          6  Councilman Robert Jackson from Manhattan.

          7                 Councilwoman Freed, welcome.

          8                 MS. FREED: Thank you very much. It's

          9  odd being on this side, but I actually want to thank

         10  you and congratulate you in going forward with this

         11  bill. This is actually a bill that I had put in when

         12  I was still in the City Council, and I must say it's

         13  high time it gets passed.

         14                 New York City is an immensely

         15  diversified City, and we always celebrate our

         16  diversity, but sadly, one area that, actually one of

         17  the examples of our diversity is the number of times

         18  that we do have holidays from different regions,

         19  different cultures and different religions, and

         20  generally speaking most of them have been honored by

         21  suspending alternate side of the street parking and

         22  an acknowledgment of how important they are.

         23                 Sadly, in the Asian community, the

         24  Asian Lunar New Year has not gotten the respect and

         25  the acknowledgment that I believe it deserves and
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          2  that this bill would help going a long way to giving

          3  them. I mean, Asian families prepare for the Asian,

          4  you know, the Lunar New Year ahead of time is a big

          5  family celebration, people are expected to be home,

          6  they do the shopping, they do the feast, and they

          7  literally need to have their alternate side of the

          8  street suspended so they don't have to deal with

          9  moving the car or trying to find a parking space.

         10  This is the highest holiday of the Asian culture,

         11  and they deserve, as I said, the respect that they

         12  should at least have alternate side of the street

         13  parking to acknowledge the culture, and acknowledge

         14  how important it is, an important day it is, and

         15  then I expect at some point, I know when I was still

         16  counsel, many people wanted to suspend school days

         17  as well, but I think this is a good start, and it

         18  basically acknowledges and gives the proper respect

         19  to the Asian community that it deserves. And, again,

         20  I want to thank you for introducing this bill. I'm

         21  confident it will get passed as it should. So, thank

         22  you. And thank you for the opportunity of addressing

         23  this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, I

         25  would just note for the record, for reasons I'm sure

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that are now apparent, my predecessor is known

          3  affectionately throughout much of Lower Manhattan as

          4  Fu Le Da.

          5                 MS. FREED: Do Jah (phonetic).

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Before we

          7  hear the next witness, let me just note for

          8  everybody's benefit that the budget caucus is

          9  beginning now downstairs, so that is why many of the

         10  Committee members have had to go downstairs and that

         11  probably includes myself at some point. So, we may

         12  have to take a short recess so I could get down

         13  there, but let's hear from Po-Ling Ng. Welcome.

         14                 MS. NG: Good morning, Chairperson,

         15  Alan Gerson, all our lovely City Council people. My

         16  name is Po-Ling Ng, I am Director of the

         17  Chinese-American Planning Council Project Open Door

         18  Senior Citizen Center, and I served on the

         19  organization, it's 34 years already, and we give

         20  service Citywide, and non-profit service

         21  organization, and also I was the school board member

         22  for 18 years. I am a resident in Chinatown more than

         23  34 years.

         24                 Why I said that, today I would like

         25  to say to all of you, I really am in favor of the
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          2  Lunar New Year. Why? I tell you. Here is America.

          3  America is an immigrant country. You think America

          4  is successful, my friend please don't forget us. The

          5  Lunar is very important for the Chinese Americans. I

          6  tell you when I was the school board member, I will

          7  take school Chinese New Year's Day. They say,

          8  Po-Ling, New Year is very important for us, why we

          9  go to school for? Because everybody talking about

         10  family value. This important day family should get

         11  together.

         12                 And I am the Director of the Senior

         13  Citizen Center, also my seniors say Po-Ling, why,

         14  you know, we build this country, even this very

         15  important day, why don't we have a legal holiday?

         16                 So, that's why, you know, the lovely

         17  City Council and tell us a lot, but not approved

         18  yet. But I wish all of you come over here, you know,

         19  approve for us.

         20                 The second, all of your support of

         21  us, all your 911, who get's seriously hurt, us, the

         22  Chinatown, who care of us? Nobody. So, that's why I

         23  come over here, I just want to make you know that

         24  Chinese-American is very good taxpayer. We work very

         25  hard. Here is America. We need the opportunity, we
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          2  need the respect.

          3                 Also, I tell you, if you respect us

          4  and give us Lunar Year as a legal holiday, we're

          5  praying that America is good luck. Good luck.

          6  Because right now I heard the Mayor Bloomberg said

          7  that this year had a 5 billion deficit. How could

          8  you get money and no deficit?

          9                 If you respect the Chinese Americans,

         10  and if you respect of us, I tell you, no more

         11  deficits, because a lot of colors will come to visit

         12  our Chinatown. Chinatown is a beautiful, beautiful

         13  town. Thank you. God bless all of you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms. Ng.

         15  Thank you for your testimony.

         16                 Mr. Mei-Hua Ru.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes, Mr.

         18  Chair, I just have to add, as we've all heard the

         19  voice of Po-Ling Ng, is a voice which cannot be

         20  ignored, is heard throughout our communities,

         21  throughout our City, and that is a very, very good

         22  thing. And I especially appreciate the advice on the

         23  deficit reduction program, which comes in good

         24  timing.

         25                 MS. NG: If all of you respect us, no
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          2  more deficit.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, we thank

          4  you for all that you do for us day in and day out

          5  and for your friendship.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          7  and we will hear from the next witness.

          8                 MS. RU: Okay. Good morning, everyone.

          9  Good morning, Chairman, and Council members, I'm

         10  here today basically to just voice my personal

         11  opinion on why I feel the Asian Lunar New Year

         12  should be a legal holiday.

         13                 I like to talk a little bit about the

         14  Asian Lunar New Year I remember when I was a child.

         15  I grew up in Taiwan until the age of seven-years

         16  old, and then I came to this great country.

         17                 As a child, I remember Asian Lunar

         18  New Year as the most festive and extravagant holiday

         19  there ever was, and I use the word extravagant

         20  because it didn't matter if you were rich or poor,

         21  we all saved the best to share with our friends and

         22  families on this holiday.

         23                 Some of the events that I remember

         24  clearly were the incredible firework displays, the

         25  fantastic feasts, and, of course, the good luck
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          2  money given to children. But there were much more to

          3  it than that. Everyone returned home for the Asian

          4  Lunar New Year, it didn't matter where you were,

          5  everyone wore new clothes, or if they couldn't

          6  afford new clothes, their best clothes.

          7                 For some of the poorer families, they

          8  would save all year long so that they could perhaps

          9  have meat for this once a year celebration.

         10                 After arriving in the United States,

         11  my mom made great attempts to bring the festive mood

         12  to our little Asian New Year celebration, but it

         13  wasn't the same.

         14                 First of all, both my parents had to

         15  work, and I, obviously, had to go to school. If

         16  Asian Lunar New Year fell on a weekday, there really

         17  weren't enough time for my mom to cook up a feast.

         18  So, we settled for eating out.

         19                 There are so many activities and

         20  traditions involved with Asian Lunar New Year, that

         21  it is not possible to have a proper Asian Lunar New

         22  Year celebration without at least one full day of

         23  preparation.

         24                 In Taiwan, Asian Lunar New Year

         25  consists of four legal days of rest. And that's
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          2  really the bear minimum.

          3                 Some private entities and businesses

          4  will rest til the 15th day of the New Year. Here in

          5  the United States we pride ourselves at being the

          6  most tolerant nation in embracing different cultures

          7  and religions, so how is it that we make certain

          8  exceptions for one group, and not another?

          9                 Asian people have made a lot of

         10  contribution to this country, shouldn't we at last

         11  have our own holiday?

         12                 And, finally, I want to add that

         13  although the City might lost one day of revenue

         14  generated from parking meters and parking fines, and

         15  certain agencies feel that it's an additional burden

         16  to them, I view that this is a short-term loss. A

         17  happy, respected Asian community will ultimately be

         18  the City's biggest gain.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         21  for your time and your testimony this morning.

         22                 Are there any questions from the

         23  panel?

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 Let me call up the next panel that we
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          2  have, Chuck Lou from Confucius Board of Directors;

          3  David Goodman from Confucius Plaza Management, and

          4  Paul Lee, a member of CCBA and Lower Manhattan

          5  Advisory.

          6                 After this panel we will need to take

          7  a short recess of 20 minutes, after which we will

          8  resume testimony. And the first panel to speak after

          9  that recess will be Margaret Chin from Asian

         10  Americans for Equality, joined by Pun Shui Cheung,

         11  and Cun Wu Chang.

         12                 Chuck Lou.

         13                 MR. LOU: Good morning. I need a

         14  translater.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please proceed with

         16  your comments.

         17                 MR. LOU: (Through the interpreter.)

         18  Chairperson Liu, and all the Council members, good

         19  morning. New York is among the world that is all the

         20  ethnic groups and races and concentrated in New

         21  York, and especially Chinatown is very famous.

         22                 Overseas tourists who come to New

         23  York, they must come to Chinatown. In Chinese New

         24  Year, families will go to restaurants to have a

         25  dinner and to celebrate, and will go around to
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          2  different families who visit. With the live bands

          3  and also with the firework displays and it's very,

          4  very happy.

          5                 Also, the Vietnam, Korea and

          6  Singapore, all these Southeast Asia countries, they

          7  all celebrate the Lunar New Year. Tourists will also

          8  make a special trip to Chinatown to feel this

          9  happiness and joyful feeling and enjoy the

         10  atmosphere in Chinatown. Having meals and buying

         11  gifts, that's why Chinatown every year actually has

         12  gained a lot of revenues for the New York City

         13  government. So, I'm requesting all Council members

         14  to make this Lunar New Year a legal holiday.

         15                 I believe by doing so, it will make

         16  the tourism, big help for the whole City. Now I'm

         17  representing the tenants of Confucius Plaza to thank

         18  all of you who sponsored this Intro. 6.

         19                 So, today I can especially use

         20  Chinese to speak here, it proves that America is a

         21  democratic and free country.

         22                 Thank you all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         24                 Mr. Goodman.

         25                 MR. GOODMAN: First of all, Chairman
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          2  Liu, and Council Members, thank you for allowing us

          3  to be here today and to speak up on behalf of this

          4  measure.

          5                 I'm a relative new-comer to the

          6  community. I've been managing Confucius Plaza as of

          7  June 1st -- excuse me, January 1st. One of the first

          8  innovations that I instituted was to put up

          9  decorations for Chinese New Years, not only within

         10  our complex, but we put up big banners on the bowery

         11  side of the building, and I can't tell you the

         12  number of people who step into our office, both

         13  residents and visitors, thanking us for

         14  acknowledging the new year on behalf of those who

         15  celebrate it.

         16                 I think that since I've been here

         17  I've gone to CCBA meetings, I've gone to the local

         18  community board meetings with residents and Board

         19  members of Confucius Plaza, and they are working

         20  toward the greater good of this City, not just their

         21  own small community, their small portion of it, I

         22  think that by passing this you're simply expressing

         23  part of the mutual respect of different members of

         24  the New York City community as a whole, and I'm just

         25  expressing my support of this measure.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          4                 Mr. Lee.

          5                 MR. LEE: Hi, Chairman John Liu, and

          6  honorable City Council members. Thank you for

          7  convening this hearing. I'll try to be as brief as I

          8  can. I was born and raised in New York City,

          9  actually right in Chinatown, and one of my fondest

         10  memories growing up, particularly as a young

         11  teenager was Boyscouting. I was a member of Troop

         12  150, at True Light Lutheran Church, and the spirit

         13  of that experience was that we were all one, and it

         14  was something I remember very vividly growing up in

         15  New York City.

         16                 As a matter of fact, when Columbus

         17  Day came around, I always felt I was an honorary

         18  Italian, and when St. Patrick's Day came around, I

         19  always felt I was an honorary Irish. And I also

         20  remember seeing buttons that said "kiss me, I'm

         21  Italian." Later there were buttons that said "kiss

         22  me, I'm Irish." I look forward to the day when you

         23  folks here pass this bill, and I can be in my store

         24  on Mott Street and I can see all these New Yorkers

         25  come by and see buttons that say kiss me, I'm
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          2  Chinese, so I hope you'll pass this bill. Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And I

          5  feel good about passing this bill.

          6                 We have been requested by the Speaker

          7  of the City Council to take a recess so that my

          8  colleagues and I can join them in the budget caucus

          9  downstairs. So, we will need to take a 20-minute

         10  recess. In exactly 20 minutes we will reconvene this

         11  hearing.

         12                 (Off the record.)

         13                 We've been excused from the caucus.

         14  So, at this point I would actually resume our

         15  hearing. So, let me call up the next panel.

         16                 Thank you very much, gentlemen, for

         17  your time. I want to thank Tammi Toe from Councilman

         18  Alan Gerson's office for providing the translation

         19  for Mr. Lou.

         20                 The next panel will be Margaret Chin

         21  from the Asian Americans for Equality, as well as

         22  Pun Shui Cheung, and Cun Wu Chang also from AAFE.

         23                 Following this panel will be Ellen

         24  Young; Li, Han Sheng; and Diann Chan.

         25                 Good morning, Margaret. Welcome.
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          2                 MS. CHIN: Good morning. Good morning,

          3  Chairman Lou and good morning to Council Members,

          4  especially Alan Gerson and Robert Jackson. Thank you

          5  for the opportunity to testify today. My name is

          6  Margaret Chin, I'm the Deputy Executive Director of

          7  Asian Americans for Equality. AAFE is a

          8  Chinatown-based community development organization

          9  that has been providing social service, law business

         10  assistance, and affordable housing for low-income

         11  immigrant and minority communities for the last 28

         12  years.

         13                 I am pleased to be here today to

         14  speak in support of Intro. No. 6, and I also wanted

         15  to thank Chairman Liu and Council members for

         16  introducing this bill. This legislation will

         17  formally recognize the most celebrated holiday in

         18  the Asian calendar as an official holiday in New

         19  York City, and it will be a great symbolic step for

         20  the New York Asian community.

         21                 The Asian Lunar New Year is the most

         22  important season in the ancient Lunar Calendar. The

         23  Lunar New Year has been observed by Chinese,

         24  Koreans, and Vietnamese cultures for thousands of

         25  years. It is deep in tradition, and on occasion
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          2  where Asian communities take time to get together

          3  with families, honors its elders and to commit to

          4  new beginnings.

          5                 The Lunar New Year is the joyous

          6  tradition for the Asian-American community in New

          7  York City, with parades in Chinatown and Flushing

          8  and also in Brooklyn. It ties diverse Asian

          9  communities together and offers every New Yorker a

         10  chance to join in. Visitors and tourists are also

         11  drawn to New York's Asian communities to take part

         12  in the festivities, vendors and shops do a

         13  flourishing business, restaurants are filled with

         14  families toasting in the New Year.

         15                 In the aftermath of September 11th,

         16  and with the economic suffering of the Chinatown

         17  communities, it is particularly important this year

         18  to support the events of Lunar New Year by passing

         19  this amendment to the Administrative Code.

         20  Suspending alternate side of the street parking on

         21  Lunar New Year will be an important recognition of

         22  the Asian tradition, but it will also help bring

         23  much needed tourism and businesses back into our

         24  once thriving neighborhoods.

         25                 And I wanted to thank you again,
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          2  Chairman Liu, for introducing this legislation and

          3  also the fellow Council Member for supporting this.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 I wanted to introduce Mr. Chang and

          6  Mr. Wu, who are long-time members of AAFE and also

          7  of the Chinatown community, and they just want to

          8  voice their support and thank you.

          9                 MR. CHANG: (In Chinese.)

         10                 MS. CHIN: Mr. Chang just wanted to

         11  emphasize that thousands of years of Chinese culture

         12  that the Chinese New Year has celebrated, and now

         13  that he is a US citizen, and he wants everyone to

         14  join in the celebration and he urges your support.

         15                 Mr. Wu.

         16                 MR. WU: (In Chinese.)

         17                 MS. CHIN: Mr. Wu reiterated again

         18  that the Lunar New Year, the Spring Festival as

         19  known in Chinese, has been celebrated for thousands

         20  of years, it's a time where people unite together

         21  and is a very, very happy occasion, and he really

         22  urges the government to recognize this as a legal

         23  holiday. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         25  for your time this morning.
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          2                 We have been joined by Councilman

          3  Angel Rodriguez from Brooklyn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you,

          5  especially to Margaret Chin, for your great

          6  leadership on this and so many issues important to

          7  our community.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me call up the

          9  next panel now. We have Ellen Young; Han Sheng Li,

         10  and Diann Chan.

         11                 And let me give notice to the

         12  following panel which will be Eric Wong; Tun-Hsu

         13  McCoy; and Rosa Feng.

         14                 Welcome.

         15                 MS. YOUNG: Good morning, Councilman

         16  Liu, Councilman Gerson and all members of the panel.

         17  I was asked do I have any statement prepared, no.

         18  It's been in my brain for all these years. I've been

         19  emigrated to the United States, this is the 26

         20  years.

         21                 I am the Chairperson of the

         22  Asian-American Public Policy Forum nationwide

         23  organization, I also have a talk show educational in

         24  Chinese language, broadcasting widely to 200,000

         25  listeners, tristate, and also being more than

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  two-decades volunteer to my community, the first

          3  Asian female auxiliary officer, contributing to our

          4  community. It sounds like I have nothing to do with

          5  why I'm here, but it means a lot to me that I was

          6  not able to celebrate the Lunar New Year here as

          7  much as I could back home.

          8                 When I was at Jackie and Julie's age

          9  -- behave yourself, okay? -- I remember the worst

         10  punishment you can get from your parents is get

         11  yelled at or get hit for things you do wrong, but

         12  there's only one day out of 365 days you're not

         13  going to be touched by anyone, that's the Lunar New

         14  Year. For all these 364 days you look up to this day

         15  that you can dress up with new dress and new shoes

         16  and something in the red package to bring you good

         17  luck, and lots of good luck.

         18                 So, I truly appreciate that this year

         19  that you, Council members, have made history in this

         20  room, the Chambers, first time celebrated, the Lunar

         21  New Year, you don't know how much you made to the

         22  Asian media, and it's still echoing in the community

         23  and what a great thing that you've done, that you

         24  finally noticed there is ten percent of Asians in

         25  the City, and you're finally giving one day to
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          2  recognize that we do have a holiday in our mind, in

          3  our heart, and that is going to stay with us in the

          4  memory and I hope that we can make it an official

          5  holiday.

          6                 Before I came to New York and made

          7  the decision to reside in New York, it was in 1977.

          8  The temperature went up above the record, 104

          9  degrees, and I see Councilman Gerson is nodding his

         10  head, you probably were very young like I was, and

         11  there was the caliber, 44 caliber killer Son of Sam

         12  being looking for somebody, exactly the description

         13  I was looking at, dark brown hair, female, young and

         14  single, and also it was the biggest blackout in the

         15  history with the riots underway all the way from Tai

         16  Pei City through Honolulu, LA and San Francisco,

         17  Chicago, everybody is asking me why do you make your

         18  choice to go to New York? You'll be killed before

         19  you get there. I said, no, New York is always in my

         20  dreams, the top City, the biggest City in the world.

         21  In New York I heard you can feel like home, and you

         22  can contribute as much as you want and take as much

         23  as you want. And that's the time I made the

         24  decision. And today, after 9/11, all the Asians you

         25  are seeing now had made a very important second
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          2  decision in life, which is to stay in New York, to

          3  help to build New York, and to bring people

          4  together.

          5                 Eighty days after 9/11 I had

          6  organized, 1,000 consumers came down to Chinatown to

          7  spend money with a meal. That was the time when the

          8  WTC was still in smoke. You must remember, most

          9  people were staying home, they would not come out to

         10  even Manhattan, forget about downtown Manhattan.

         11  That's how much we had contributed to the City, how

         12  much we wanted to be recognized by the City, and I

         13  thank you very much to give one more chance to

         14  yourself to make a history, let's have Lunar New

         15  Year a holiday, a holiday to bring people together,

         16  a holiday to remind people that New Yorkers are

         17  tough, are the best, and with a very generous heart

         18  to give just one day recognition to all the Asians

         19  in the City.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Ms. Li.

         22                 MS. LI: (Through the interpreter.) I

         23  strongly support the passing of Lunar New Year as a

         24  public holiday by recognizing the most important

         25  Chinese tradition in America, it will make me feel
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          2  more at home in this country of immigrants.

          3                 Thank you very much. I wish you the

          4  best.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Diann

          6  Chan.

          7                 MS. CHAN: Okay, I heard many, many

          8  good points made today by other people, and most of

          9  them -- I didn't prepare a script, I guess I'll

         10  speak something from my heart now.

         11                 My name is Diann Chan, and today I

         12  come here from two perspectives, one is that I'm a

         13  Chinese-American, I came here when I was young, and

         14  I went to school, both Lehman High School in the

         15  Bronx, then I went to Harvard and Yale later on for

         16  my education. And I'm a very typical three

         17  generation Chinese American family. Today my father

         18  is here, myself and my two daughters, who happen to

         19  be born here in New York City, and, in fact, my

         20  older daughter Julie, she was a New Year's baby. She

         21  was born in Saint Luke's Roosevelt Hospital.

         22                 I think the point I want to make is

         23  that as a mother, as a parent, with roots from

         24  another country, we are here in the States, we are

         25  all American, how do I pass these values onto my
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          2  children? That's my first point.

          3                 And the second point is that, what

          4  about looking at it from other people, from other

          5  countries, from the Chinese or in China, or from

          6  Korea, or from Singapore, whoever, what about from

          7  their perspective, if they think Americans celebrate

          8  Lunar New Year right here in New York City? What

          9  would they think? It's a great gesture by all New

         10  Yorkers, because it's a message right here in New

         11  York City, we celebrate other people's, the most

         12  important holidays, in their tradition.

         13                 So, I think as a mother in America

         14  raising American kids, Asian-American kids, and as

         15  an outsider, trying to look from the perspective

         16  from an outsider, I think it's great. Wonderful. The

         17  best thing America can do, for Americans and for

         18  people around the world.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         21  for your time and your testimony this morning.

         22                 Let me call up the next panel. We

         23  will have Eric Wong; Tun-Hsu McCoy; and Rosa Feng.

         24  And immediately after this panel, we'll hear from

         25  the final panel, which will be comprised of Don Lee,
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          2  from Community Board 2; Tinmay Chung Lu; Anne Fu;

          3  and Sharon Wen.

          4                 And let me at this point mention that

          5  this has been a relatively long hearing, and I want

          6  to thank my colleagues, Council Member Martin Golden

          7  and Alan Gerson and Robert Jackson for being with us

          8  through the duration of this hearing.

          9                 I should also point out that Martin

         10  Golden is the prime sponsor of this bill and I want

         11  to thank him for that. And Helen Sears is still with

         12  us. We are all co-sponsors of this very important

         13  bill.

         14                 Thank you. Let's hear from Eric Wong.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Excuse me, Mr.

         16  Chair. Having said that, having thanked me for the

         17  duration I need to ask to be excused to attend the

         18  delegation matter. And thank you for your leadership

         19  and thank you for allowing me to be a guest at this

         20  hearing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         22  Member Gerson.

         23                 MR. WONG: My name is Eric Wong. I

         24  live here. I moved to New York about eight years

         25  ago, and now I'm working in a public school, I'm
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          2  speaking for myself.

          3                 So, since I work in a public school,

          4  I'm speaking from perspective of education. Now, I

          5  just want to make it short because I try to recall

          6  your memory, last year in high school regent tests,

          7  that one subject which was held on Lunar New Year.

          8  And there are a lot of petition from Asian students

          9  to the government, even to Governor Pataki to

         10  reschedule the test, but it was turned down.

         11                 I was very upset about this because

         12  students could be enjoying the celebration at home

         13  on that day, instead of taking tests on that day.

         14  And therefore, I think with more and more

         15  Chinese-American New York City, the City should

         16  respect the tradition, and make Lunar New Year as a

         17  public holiday. And of course, if it's a public

         18  holiday, it's a school holiday, and there won't be

         19  any public exam arranged on that day. So, the

         20  student can enjoy themselves at home and give them a

         21  break.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Tun-Hsu

         24  McCoy, please.

         25                 MS. McCOY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman
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          2  and members of the City Council, thank you for

          3  holding this hearing today and thank you for

          4  allowing me to appear before you.

          5                 My name is Tun-Hsu McCoy. I live 60

          6  miles away in Suffolk County on Long Island.  I am

          7  here to speak on behalf of those of us who are not

          8  New York City residents but do come into this great

          9  City to enjoy what it has to offer. Many of us are

         10  in support of the bill that is before you and urge

         11  you to adopt it. By suspending alternate side

         12  parking rules on the Asian Lunar New Year, you will

         13  make it so much easier for us to enjoy our families

         14  and friends and to patronize businesses in the City

         15  on this important holiday in our culture.

         16                 We firmly believe that this local

         17  law's time has come for several reasons. First, let

         18  us look at the size of the Asian population in New

         19  York City.

         20                 According to the 2000 Census, the

         21  City has 8 million residents and nearly 800,000 of

         22  them are of Asian origin. That is ten percent of the

         23  City. I estimate that half of these Asians, or five

         24  percent, have their cultural roots in the East Asian

         25  countries where the Lunar New Year is celebrated. In
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          2  other words, about one of every 20 New Yorkers is in

          3  the habit of observing the Lunar New Year. The

          4  proposed code lists 27 days in addition to all state

          5  and national holidays, on which holiday parking

          6  rules would apply.

          7                 Devoting one of the 27 days for the

          8  benefit of one of every 20 New Yorkers is fair and

          9  reasonable.

         10                 Secondly, the Asian Lunar New Year is

         11  by no means celebrated by Asians and Asian-Americans

         12  only. For years now many New Yorkers who do not hail

         13  from East Asia have been happily enjoying this

         14  festival as well. After all, this is New York, where

         15  everyone celebrates everyone else's holiday.

         16                 News coverage is often a measurement

         17  of an event's importance, and it's popular appeal.

         18  Our use, as an example, the space devoted to the

         19  Lunar New Year by the New York Times, in recent

         20  years the Times has often printed some half a dozen

         21  articles each year, activities surrounding this

         22  holiday.

         23                 For example, during a two-week period

         24  in 1995, the articles included the following:

         25   "Dumplings for a Lucky Year of the Pig," "A
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          2  Thousand Traditions Bloom," "Banquets for the

          3  Chinese New Year" and so on.

          4                 The Times also reported that in New

          5  York City an increasing number of non-Asians is

          6  keeping the tradition of the Lunar New Year Parade

          7  alive. More than half of the performers scheduled to

          8  take part in the Lion Dance Parade through

          9  Chinatown, were black, Hispanics or white.

         10                 A Friday in February 1994, the Times

         11  listed a number of weekend activities around the

         12  City for children, including a lantern-making

         13  workshop in Manhattan's Chinatown, a lion dance

         14  performance on East 65th Street, and a Happy New

         15  Year workshop in Brooklyn. The Asian Lunar New Year

         16  is a now a mainstream festival celebrated by New

         17  Yorkers of all cultural backgrounds.

         18                 In closing, I urge you to vote for

         19  this bill. It is time that Asian-Americans be

         20  treated on equal footing with other New Yorkers who

         21  arrived on these shores before us.

         22                 One of 27 parking holidays is just

         23  right for this growing group of New Yorkers.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.
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          2                 Ms. Feng, do you need an interpreter?

          3                 MS. FENG: I need a interpretation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          5                 Tammi, would you give us a hand here?

          6  Mandarin.

          7                 Thank you, Ms. Feng, for coming down

          8  this morning.

          9                 MS. FENG: Thank you. (Through the

         10  interpreter.)

         11                 Chairman Liu, Council members, my

         12  name is Rosa Feng. Chinese-Americans have made many

         13  contributions to the City of New York, and the City

         14  of New York should in turn recognize our hard work

         15  and our values by legislating Lunar New Year as a

         16  public holiday.

         17                 Lunar New Year is the most

         18  heart-warming family celebration, and the only

         19  opportunity for our entire family to come together

         20  to cherish our culture. It is important to us, it's

         21  the same as Thanksgiving and Christmas to the

         22  Americans.

         23                 Thank you, and hope you can support

         24  this bill.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I want to thank this
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          2  panel for their time this morning.

          3                 Let me call up now our final panel,

          4  consisting of Don Lee; Tinmay Chung Lu; Anne Fu; and

          5  Sharon Wen.

          6                 Don, good morning.

          7                 MR. LEE: Good morning. It's an honor

          8  to be here. Thank you for holding this hearing.

          9                 Just a lot has been said and very

         10  eloquently and it's correct, that it is a major

         11  holiday, it does speak to the diversity of our City.

         12  Two other points I would like to make, particularly

         13  to address the concerns of the Department of

         14  Sanitation. I think some points have been made that

         15  the street cleaning, I think no one in this

         16  community street cleaning better than the Chinese

         17  community. God knows we need more help.

         18                 On that note, I think what needs to

         19  be understood by the Department of Sanitation, as it

         20  has been pointed out, the holiday is on the winter,

         21  number one. Number one it might not be on a day, it

         22  could be on a weekend. More important than that,

         23  what I remember also about Chinese New Year, is the

         24  fact that cleaning this is the major attribute of

         25  Chinese New Year, Lunar New Year celebration.
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          2                 One of the speakers had mentioned

          3  earlier about getting slapped on, one of the things

          4  I get slapped on is not getting my apartment, you

          5  know, my room clean. Even today, by the way. But the

          6  key thing I'm trying to make is that it is about

          7  cleanliness. In fact, some people in the community

          8  believe that, you know, to start the day, the year,

          9  it is on that day, and we want to make sure the

         10  streets are as clean as possible.

         11                 So, I think that Sanitation can rest

         12  assured that it will be 1 million Asians to make

         13  sure the streets will be clean on that one day. And

         14  they can apply the resources to help other areas.

         15                 The other things that, I just also

         16  want to thank particularly Councilman Golden for

         17  your support on this bill and sponsoring this bill,

         18  and Councilman Liu for your leadership in making

         19  this forward.

         20                 I think it speaks to the diversity,

         21  the Sanitation's concern can be addressed, it is a

         22  response of the City to make sure that we include

         23  all of us, and I don't want to take up any more

         24  people's time.

         25                 And on a personal note, I was born on
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          2  Chinese New Years, so there's some personal interest

          3  on my part also.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          6                 Ms. Lu. And if I could ask our

          7  interpreter to join us once again.

          8                 Please proceed.

          9                 MS. LU: (Through the interpreter.)

         10  Ladies and gentlemen, how are everybody? My name is

         11  Lu Chung Tinmay. I came here in 1969.

         12                 I work at the Board of Ed, District

         13  12, Community School 211. I work there for 30 years.

         14  Every year when I try to celebrate Chinese New Year,

         15  I have to take a day off. So I support the Chinese

         16  New Year's Day to become a legal holiday.

         17                 I have a petition to support this

         18  bill from 74 people. Yesterday at lunchtime I asked

         19  the school's teachers and workers to sign.

         20                 When I asked them, none of them

         21  disagreed. Everyone raised both hands to agree of

         22  this.

         23                 China has 5,000 years of cultural

         24  history. Please help us to make the Chinese New Year

         25  become the legal holiday.
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          2                 Thank you for everyone.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Ms. Anne

          4  Fu.

          5                 MS. FU: (Through the interpreter). My

          6  name is Fu Anne. I want to tell everybody what I'm

          7  thinking about. The Asian's Lunar New Year is as

          8  important as any other ethnic important holiday.

          9  Therefore, I ask sincerely your support to make the

         10  Lunar New Year an official holiday, and that we have

         11  our children to spend just one day out of a year to

         12  celebrate this important meaningful holiday in our

         13  culture.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And our

         16  final witness, Sharon Wen. Please speak into the

         17  mic.

         18                 MS. WEN: (Through the interpreter.)

         19  I'm nervous. I don't know how to start.

         20                 First of all, I would like to express

         21  my appreciation to this Mayor, to the Council

         22  members and to all of the people who has attended

         23  today's hearing. Thank you for giving me this

         24  opportunity.

         25                 And I would like to have the contents
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          2  of my speech today to be new and informed to the

          3  Mayor, to every member of the City Council, and

          4  everyone in the world.

          5                 I have spent so much time to consider

          6  about whether I should attend this hearing or not,

          7  and that struggle had cost so much time, and my

          8  final decision was to come here today.

          9                 Because I know that if I speak out

         10  the real feeling from my heart, I'll be murdered and

         11  killed by somebody. First of all, I would like to

         12  express my opposing to make the Lunar New Year a

         13  holiday.

         14                 Why do I say this? The reasons are

         15  the following: I knew you were going to wonder why

         16  would I say it. Am I not a Chinese? I actually love

         17  China more than anyone and I also love my family. I

         18  absolutely believe that no one else loves China or

         19  loves their family more than I do. And you're going

         20  to ask me, if you love Chinese so much, why would

         21  you oppose the Intro. No. 6 bill to make it a

         22  holiday?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We are at this

         24  point, I have because of the passion of this

         25  witness, allowed more than twice the amount of time
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          2  that all of the witnesses have been allowed, so

          3  Miss, I would ask you to end your testimony very

          4  soon.

          5                 Thank you. Let's enter the

          6  interpretation into the record.

          7                 MS. WEN: (Through the interpreter.)

          8  About two years ago at the, in the radio program of

          9  Cheung Wa Chung Tai, Cheung Wa broadcasting radio, a

         10  program, I had debate, I called in and debated with

         11  somebody. That proved that I love China as much as

         12  others, if not more.

         13                 After 9/11, the tragedy, it proves

         14  that United States is a great nation. The Americans

         15  should not set Lunar New Year a holiday. I have no

         16  objection to have the family reunion, to have the

         17  meal together to celebrate, the government will not

         18  oppose the celebration of the new year, however, if

         19  making the Lunar New Year a public holiday is going

         20  to affect the government's operation fee of -- the

         21  reduction of the parking fee. No, the lack of

         22  collecting parking fees. The America is giving too

         23  much freedom. This is the hardest time in United

         24  States history. We should not have overly ask to

         25  making Lunar Year a holiday.
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          2                 I remember the experience I have 20

          3  minutes after I passed by the World Trade Center,

          4  the building disappeared. I don't think we should

          5  ask for more. I believe that the Chinese Americans

          6  should contribute as much as we can, either by money

          7  or by strength. Don't just make the Lunar New Year a

          8  holiday for happiness. Don't just cheat the benefits

          9  of government. We should do something about it by

         10  ourself, and currently if we make the Lunar New Year

         11  a holiday in New York City, it will become China.

         12  And if people want to celebrate the Lunar New Year,

         13  they should go back to China.

         14                 That's it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         16  for your time and your testimony this morning.

         17                 I would at this point just quickly

         18  point out that -- you're excused. Thank you. Quickly

         19  point out that out of the 25 people from the

         20  community who presented testimony today, it would

         21  seem odd that the only one person that spoke against

         22  the passage of this bill came very last, and I would

         23  just point out to the community that people spoke in

         24  the order in which they arrived at this hearing this

         25  morning.
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          2                 We have a final comment from Council

          3  Member Golden.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you,

          5  Chairman.

          6                 I just wanted to comment on that last

          7  statement anyway. I believe it was revenues is the

          8  concern of the person that just testified. The

          9  revenues that would be encouraged and the revenues

         10  that the City would see by the eight and a quarter

         11  sales tax of the people coming out and celebrating

         12  Lunar New Year would far exceed the revenues we

         13  would have gotten from some instances that day. So,

         14  I think it's important that we look at that revenue

         15  side, as well as the revenue enhancement of

         16  summonses.

         17                 I'd like to, a few notes that I've

         18  made here, according to an Asian Zodiac 2002, was

         19  the Year of the Horse in China. The Lunar New Year

         20  is also called a "spring festival," which we have

         21  heard so many times this morning. For the

         22  Vietnamese, it's Teton (phonetic), is the new year,

         23  and the Koreans celebrate Sol Now, and Losar is the

         24  Tibetan New Year. As you see that it's not only a

         25  Chinese holiday, this is a holiday which involves
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          2  over 2 billion people around this world. In a City

          3  which is culturally diverse as ours, it is time that

          4  a holiday of this magnitude gets recognized in

          5  almost 1 million Asians, ten percent, one in ten in

          6  this City.

          7                 New York City is the home of many

          8  Asian-Americans, Koreans, Chinese, et cetera, et

          9  cetera, the City and the State of New York are the

         10  home of the highest percentage of Asian-Americans.

         11  Unlike California, New York City does not recognize

         12  the Asian Lunar New Year.

         13                 The Asian Lunar New Year bill, which

         14  I am introducing with my colleague Council Member

         15  John Liu, Chairman Liu, will give this community

         16  recognition, even in a small way, of a community

         17  coming of age. And you don't really realize how

         18  great this holiday means to the people, to the

         19  Chinese people and to the many cultures, until you

         20  sit here and you get the perspective of how much it

         21  really means to the Asian community. You can feel

         22  the intensity in this room, and that's very, very

         23  important.

         24                 The Asian-American community is a

         25  very important part of our social and economic
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          2  landscape of the City of New York. My district is

          3  the home of 26,000 Asian-Americans, which is in

          4  Bayridge and Dyker Heights and Bensonhurst, some

          5  first generation but many third generation. They

          6  have pride in their past, they look forward to their

          7  future.

          8                 I placed this bill in the City

          9  because of them, and the honor of them, in honor of

         10  that worker from the Bank of New York who was an EMT

         11  who rushed into the World Trade Center to help the

         12  injured but never returned, in honor of that

         13  dry-cleaner who works 12 hours a day to achieve the

         14  American dream, in honor of that police officer who

         15  helped our City to become safe. I point to these

         16  people, in order to show how Asian-American

         17  Community is part of my community and your

         18  community.

         19                 This community gives this City so

         20  much that it deserves to be honored and respected in

         21  the same world, the same way all communities are.

         22  The Asian American community is part of the greater

         23  community which makes this great melting pot known

         24  as New York City.

         25                 Finally, I want to thank the groups
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          2  who testified here today, and especially thank

          3  Chairman, Council Member John Liu for his support,

          4  for his leadership in bringing this bill and making

          5  this bill a reality.

          6                 John Liu made New York City and State

          7  history when he was elected to New York City

          8  Council. He became the first elected Asian-American

          9  official in the entire state of 18 and a half

         10  million people.

         11                 I would love to continue this trend

         12  in making history, because he is truly a great

         13  leader and he represents truly a great community, my

         14  community, our community.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         17  I want to thank all who participated in this

         18  morning's hearing of the Transportation Committee of

         19  the City Council on Intro. No. 6, a bill that would

         20  suspend alternate side of the street parking

         21  regulations on the Asian Lunar New Year, this bill

         22  is, again, very significant in its recognition of

         23  the contributions that Asian-Americans have made to

         24  this City, to this state and country. And it allows

         25  our families to celebrate the most important holiday
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          2  in the Asian community properly.

          3                 And it also allows non-Asian New

          4  Yorkers, to recognize the significance of the

          5  contributions of our community in allowing them,

          6  giving them a break as well, with respect to the

          7  parking regulations.

          8                 So, I want to thank all of you for

          9  coming out. This Committee has heard a great deal of

         10  testimony in person at today's hearing. We have also

         11  received a great deal of written testimony in

         12  support of the passage of this bill. At a future

         13  meeting of the Transportation Committee, I fully

         14  expect that we will vote on this bill, and it is my

         15  hope that we will pass this bill, at which point the

         16  bill will then be sent to the full Council for a

         17  vote. And I believe that we are optimistic, Council

         18  Member Golden, who altered the bill, and myself, and

         19  our colleagues, that we will be able to pass this

         20  into law for all New Yorkers.

         21                 Thank you very much. This hearing is

         22  now adjourned.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at  12:30 p.m.)

         24
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